


Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

August 8, 2018 

Page 2 of 2  

5. PUBLIC COMMEN T
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject matter ju risdiction of 

the City Council that are not listed on this agenda.  Please make your comments as brief as possible; not to exceed three (3) minutes in 

length.  The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be referred to staff. 

6. COUN CIL, STAFF AND  OTHER REPORTS
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at committee 

meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the Council prefers formal 

action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 

6A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 

6B. City Operations Update – City staff 

6C. Additional Reports – Agency partners 

7. COUN CIL BUSIN ESS

7A. South Auburn St. and I-80 Roundabout Project Update and Omni-Means Contract 

Amendment. 

Staff Presentation:  Dane Schilling, City Engineer; Paul Anderson, Associate Engineer  

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 53-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute 

Amendment № 2 to the Consultant Services Agreement between the City of Colfax and Omni-

Means, a GHD Company, authorizing the City Manager to execute future amendments with 

costs not to exceed the Design Budget for the S. Auburn St. and  I-80 Roundabout Project, and  

acknowledging new ownership of the design engineering firm .. 

7B. Commercial Cannabis Retailer Permit Application Progress. 

Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager  

Recommendation:  Receive update, d iscuss and d irect staff as appropriate. 

8. GOOD OF THE ORDER - INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE

BUSINESS OF THE CITY
Informal observation reports and inquiries regarding the business of the City may be presented by Council members under this agenda item 

or requests for placement of items of interest on a future agenda.  No action will be taken. 

9. AD JOURN MEN T

I, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk for the City of Colfax declare that this agenda was posted   

at Colfax City Hall and the Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at www.Colfax-ca.gov.  

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted  prior to action being initiated  in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council a ction 

in court, you may be limited  to raising only those issues you or someone else raised  at a public hearing described  in this 

notice/ agenda, or in written correspondence delivered  to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said  public he aring. 

http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes June 27, 2018 

6A.     City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Regular Meeting of Wednesday, June 27, 2018 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

1 OPEN SESSION 
1A. Call to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. 
1B. Pledge of Allegiance 

Jim Dion, local business owner, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
1C. Roll Call 

Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
1D. Approval of Agenda Order 
On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved the agenda order. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 

2 PRESENTATION 
2A. Colfax Green Machine – 3rd of July Celebration Update 

Andrea Harrison – Green Machine President. 
Due to an unexpected scheduling conflict, Ms. Harrison gave her report after Public Comment 
was completed. 

3 CONSENT CALENDAR 
3A. Minutes - Regular Meeting June 13, 2018 

Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 13, 2018. 
3B. Cash Summary:  May 2018 

Recommendation:  Accept and file the Cash Summary Report:  May 2018. 
3C. Gann Appropriations Limit 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 45-2018 certifying compliance with the Fiscal Year 
2017-2018 Appropriation Limitation and establishing the Appropriation Limitation for the 
Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 

3D. South Auburn Hotel Mitigation and Impact Fee Adjustments 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 46-2018 approving adjustments to the mitigation 
and impact fees for the South Auburn Hotel as agreed upon by the Land Use/New 
Development Strategies Committee. 

3E. 2018 ADA Improvements Project – Award of Contract 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 47-2018 augmenting the Fiscal Year 2017/18 
Budget by $4,000 for the ADA Improvements Project and authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into a construction agreement with B&M Builders in an amount not to exceed 
$26,000. 

3F. Facilities agreement for South Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project with 
Placer County Water Agency (PCWA) 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 48-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
facilities agreement with Placer County Water Agency for waterline relocation for the 
South Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project. 

ITEM  4A
1 of 5



City of Colfax 2 
City Council Minutes June 27, 2018 
 

3G. Human Resource Services Consultant Agreement 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 49-2018 authorizing the City Manager to enter into 
a service agreement with Koff and Associates for On-Call Human Resource Services as a 
participating agency of the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) Joint 
Human Resource Services Agreement in an amount not to exceed $30,000 for a two year 
term. 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved the Consent Calendar. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

4 PUBLIC COMMENT 
Karla Jameson, resident E. Oak Street 

¶ Ms. Jameson cautioned residents to be aware of crime occurring even mid-day.  
Her home was burgled at noon today.  Fortunately, her son came home and the 
burglar left. 

Jim Dion, local business owner 
¶ Mr. Dion handed out an article concerning HdL, the company employed by the City 

to help with cannabis business regulations.  Mr. Dion stated the company is not 
reputable. 

Katie O’Rourke, Parent of Colfax High School Students 
¶ Ms. O’Rourke brought up concerns regarding an unpermitted cannabis dispensary 

at 333 Canyon Way.  She strongly objected to the fact the City is letting this illegal 
business operate. 
Mayor Stockwin assured Ms. O’Rourke the City has code enforcement “in the 
works”.  

Janis LeRoux, Colfax First Five  
¶ Ms. LeRoux stated the Colfax Preschool is enrolling for the fall term.  For more 

information call:  530-745-1380. 
Matt Z’Berg, applicant for authorized cannabis dispensary  

¶ Mr. Z’Berg pointed out the 333 Canyon Way dispensary is also non-compliant due 
to illegal advertisement.  He has contacts with the State licensing board, the Bureau 
of Cannabis Control, and would be happy to help with information to assist the City 
with code enforcement. 
 

2 PRESENTATION 
2A. Colfax Green Machine – 3rd of July Celebration Update 

Andrea Harrison – Green Machine President. 
Ms. Harrison presented Council and staff with T-shirts and buttons. She described the Event 
plans which include bands, vendors, a children’s area and fireworks.  She requested a donation 
from Council towards the event. 
City Manager Heathcock stated $500 is a standing item budgeted for a donation the 3rd of July 
Celebration and other City-wide events.  Staff will prepare a check for the Green Machine.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

ITEM  4A
2 of 5



City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes June 27, 2018 
 

5 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 
5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 

Councilmember Harvey 
¶ Councilmember Harvey represented Colfax on the Placer County Transportation 

Planning Agency (PCTPA) board.  
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 
¶ Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza announced the first annual Colfax Indigenous People’s 

Day will be held August 25, 2018 at the Sierra Vista Community Center. 
¶ She stated there will be a Chinese Memorial Project display and video during 

Railroad Days on September 15-16, 2018.  
Councilmember Douglass 
¶ Councilmember Douglass congratulated Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza for her selection 

as Council Person of the Year for the Colfax Best of the Best.  
¶ He attended three meetings for the Sierra Vista Community Center, as well as the 

Chamber Mixer, the Artwalk and Car Show. 
¶ Councilmember Douglass represented the City at the Placer County Economic 

Development board meeting, the SACOG board meeting and Pioneer Energy board 
meetings. 

¶ He filmed a short video of highlights from the Colfax Garden Show which is posted 
on the website. 

Mayor Stockwin 
¶ Mayor Stockwin represented the City on the Placer County Mosquito and Vector 

Control District (PCMVCD) board.   
5B. City Operations – City Staff 

City Manager Heathcock 
¶ City Manager Heathcock informed Council the “Fresh Air” concert company 

continues its enthusiasm for using the Closed Landfill as a concert venue for next 
spring.  Preliminary inquiries for permission from the State Water Board have 
been promising.   

 Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza asked about the various road projects. 
¶ City Manager Heathcock replied the East Church Street connector has been paved, 

the Rising Sun Project is still held up by State inquiries, and Culver Street is in 
design phase. 

5C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Chief Brian Eagan, Colfax Fire Department Battalion Chief 
¶ Chief Eagan mentioned two recent incidents, a collision between a bear and a 

motorcycle – the bear is fine!  Also, Dine and Dash is temporarily closed due to fire.  
Fire personnel were able to keep the damage in the restaurant to one wall. 

¶ Overall, call volumes are up with about 8 calls daily. 
¶ The 10 active volunteers of the Colfax Volunteer Department are doing their part 

to help with calls for service and they will be on hand to assist during the 3rd of July 
event.  They will also be hosting a Pancake Breakfast on July 4th.  Be sure to 
support this great fundraising effort and treat yourselves to a full breakfast for 
only $5. 

¶ The fuel reduction crews for the Wastewater Treatment Plant and closed landfill 
are on a break and will begin again after July 4th.  

ITEM  4A
3 of 5



City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes June 27, 2018 
 

Sergeant Ty Conners, Commander Colfax Substation, Placer County Sheriff’s Office 
¶ Sergeant Conners has been training with FEMA learning their Type 3 All Hazard 

Incident Command System.  
¶ He has arranged to have the Mobile Command Center stationed in Colfax for the 3rd 

of July.  Council is welcome to stop by for a tour. 
Frank Klein, President of Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce  
¶ Mr. Klein thanked Council and the City Manager for supporting the Chamber Mixer 

at Homie Joes. It was well attended with over 50 people enjoying nachos and the 
band. 

¶ He invited everyone to the next Chamber Mixer to be held at Sourdough Solutions 
on July 17th from 5:30PM-7:30PM. 

¶ He was grateful to announce the Chamber was voted as the best non-profit and 
Winterfest as the best event. 

¶ The Chamber’s success is due to great volunteers and the Chamber is always 
looking for new volunteers. 

Fred Abbott, Colfax Event Liaison 
¶ Mr. Abbott reported on progress towards a great Railroad Days event in 

September.  
Sharon Conners and Foxey McCleary, Sierra Vista Community Center  
¶ Ms. Conners reported the Wednesday Farmers’ Market, Library events, Bingo, and 

the Flea Market continue to be a success. 
¶ She thanked Mr. Abbott for assistance with advertising. 
¶ Ms. McCleary reminded everyone the next Artwalk/Car Show will be July 20, 2018.  

Since the Car Show has joined the Artwalk the evenings are becoming more 
popular and more artists are joining in to display their work. 

¶ Ms. McCleary and crew will be painting the street for the 3rd of July on Friday. 
 

6 PUBLIC HEARING 
6A. Public Hearing on the written report of delinquent sewer service charges and 

delinquent refuse collection fees. 
Staff Presentation:  Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director  
Recommendation:  Conduct a public hearing to consider public and staff comments and 
adopt separate resolutions requesting collection of delinquent sewer and refuse collection 
fees on the Placer County Tax roll for Tax Year 2018-2019. 

Mayor Stockwin opened the Public Hearing at 7:59PM. 
Ms. Van Groningen explained this hearing is part of the annual process outlined in the Municipal 
Code to transfer delinquent sewer and garbage bills to the Placer County Tax rolls.  The process 
has been appropriately noticed in the paper and the delinquent account property owners have 
had proper notification. 
Council asked how many accounts are delinquent and for what amount.   
Ms. Van Groningen stated there are 59 accounts which owe about $90,000 total. 
Mr. Dion, local business owner, asked how much money is owed and Ms. Van Groningen affirmed 
it is about $90,000. 
Mayor Stockwin closed the Public Hearing at 8:01PM. 
 
 
 

 

ITEM  4A



City of Colfax 5 
City Council Minutes June 27, 2018 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, and a second by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
approved Resolution 50-2018, confirming the report of Delinquent Refuse Collection Accounts 
and placing liens on said properties and Special Assessments upon Property Taxes pursuant to 
City of Colfax Municipal Code Section 8.20.130. 
Ayes:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, and a second by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
approved Resolution 51-2018, requesting collection of Sewer Service Charges on the Placer 
County Tax Roll for Tax Year 2018-2019. 
Ayes:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 

 
 

7 GOOD OF THE ORDER – INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Councilmember Douglass toured the Sierra Oaks subdivision.  The project will be a “feather in 
the cap” for Colfax.  He gave kudos to the new owners of All Phase Auto who have cleaned up the 
property significantly.  He also noted the County has allocated almost $1,000,000 to help the 
homeless.  Gathering Inn has been tasked with administering the program. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza suggested the City participate in the summer backpack giveaway event 
hosted by Pastor Gary Howard and the Baptist Church by hosting a booth. 
 

Councilmember Harvey mentioned the program to financially help with upgrading woodstoves 
and suggested everyone check the City website or with City Hall staff for more information.  
 

Mayor Stockwin cautioned everyone to be smart with fireworks during the upcoming holiday. 
 

8 ADJOURNMENT 
 

As there was no further business, Mayor Stockwin adjourned the meeting at 8:07PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 8th day of August, 2018 
 

ITEM  4A
5 of 5



City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes July 11, 2018 

6A.     City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Regular Meeting of Wednesday, July 11, 2018 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

1 CLOSED SESSION 
1A. Call to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the meeting to order at 6:30PM. 
1B. Roll Call 

Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
1C. Public Comment on Closed Session Items 

There was no Public Comment. 
1D. Closed Session 

Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated  Litigation. Initiation of litigation pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4): One potential case.  

Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated  Litigation. Significant exposure to litigation pursuant 

to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2): One potential case. 

2 OPEN SESSION 

2A. Call Open Session to Order 
Mayor Stockwin called Council to order for Open session at 7:41PM. 

2B. Report from Closed Session 
The Council authorized legal counsel to initiate litigation pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54956.9(d)(4). The action, the defendants, and the other particulars of the 
litigation shall, once formally commenced, be disclosed to any person upon inquiry, unless 
to	do	so	will	jeopardize	the	City’s	ability	to	effectuate	service	of	process	on	one	or	more	
unserved	parties,	or	that	to	do	so	will	jeopardize	the	City’s	ability to conclude existing 
settlement negotiations to its advantage. 

3 ADJOURNMENT 

As there was no further business, Mayor Stockwin adjourned the meeting at 7:42PM. 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 8th day of August, 2018 

ITEM  4B
1 of 1



FOR THE  AUGUST 08, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: July 16, 2018 
SUBJECT: Cash Summary Report – June 2018 

X N/A FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file. 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 

These monthly financial reports include General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis 
and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank statements. 
Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget 
process each year. 

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in 
June 2018.  Monthly highlights include: 

¶ Negative cash fund balances in Special Revenues and Capital project funds are due to timing of
funding allocations and reimbursements.

o Fund 292 – Pending receipt of $30,000 grant from USDA – funds received in July 2018.
o Fund 355 and 385 – Initial project costs to be reimbursed with project funding and transfers.

Second reimbursement request for Project 385 – Roundabout is expected to be processed in
late July.

¶ Major Expenses for June included:
o Annual budgeted inter-fund transfer from General Fund to Fund 250 Streets & Roads -

$116,000.

¶ Major Revenues for June included:
o Monthly estimated sales tax revenues $80,000.
o Business License Renewals for FY2019 - $18,000.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs

a. Cash Analysis – Balance
b. Expenses by Month
c. Revenues by Month

2. Cash Activity Reports
a. Cash Summary
b. Cash Transactions Report – by individual fund
c. Check Register Report  - Accounts Payable
d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts)

ITEM  4C
1 of 11



ITEM  4C
2 of 11



ITEM  4C
3 of 11



ITEM  4C





ITEM  4C
6 of 11





ITEM  4C



ITEM  4C
9 of 11



ITEM  4C
10 of 11







2 

 

CONCLUSION:   
 

The attached schedule Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool satisfies the State’s reporting requirements.  
Additionally, we have determined: 

¶ The investments held at June 30, 2018 conform to the City Investment Policy adopted by Resolution 
29-2014. 

¶ The composite yield of the City’s investment pool to be the rate of 1.65% for the quarter ended 
June 30, 2018. 

¶ There are sufficient funds on deposit to meet all anticipated City expenditures for the period  
July 01, 2018 through December 31, 2018. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Historically, due to fluctuations in fund balances, investment opportunities outside the corporate checking 
and LAIF accounts have been somewhat limited.  With several years of solid funding levels, the City staff is 
investigating additional investment opportunities.  We will be opening an account with Multi-Bank 
Securities, Inc. for some short-term Certificates of Deposit (CD) investments in the first quarter of fiscal 
year 2018-2019.  Attached is a comparison chart which reflects current rates for DTC (Depository Trust 
Companies) Bullet CD’s. 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool 
2. State of California – PMIA and LAIF Performance Report (QE 06/30/2018) 
3. State of California – PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields 
4. Rate Comparison Chart 

ITEM 4D



ITEM 4D
3 of 6



ITEM 4D
4 of 6



ITEM 4D
5 of 6



ITEM 4D
6 of 6



FOR THE AUGUST 08, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: July 23, 2018 

SUBJECT: Sales and Use Taxes 

X N/A FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND:  General Fund 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  For information only. 

SUMMARY: 

The City has received the final accounting of Sales and Use Tax revenues for the quarter ended March 31, 2018. 
Total sales tax revenue for the quarter was $353,642, which is the highest 3rd quarter (fiscal year) in recent 
history.  Year to date sales tax revenues are 19% higher than the previous fiscal year for the same time period 
and represent 86% of the annual budget for this current fiscal year (assumes straight line budget – forecasted 
revenues spread evenly over quarters). 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 

The attached chart – Retail Sales Tax History – reports the history of sales tax revenues since 1999.  As reported 
previously, the fiscal 2015-2016 year included the true up and final adjustments related to the end of the 
decade old triple flip sales tax program which ended December 31, 2015.  This final adjustment is estimated to 
be approximately $100,000 of the growth reported for the 2015-2016 fiscal year.  Considering this adjustment 
was related to the time period of the entire triple flip process it should be considered when reviewing year to 
year changes in revenues. 

The fiscal year 2017-2018 budget was updated in February 2018 as part of the midyear budget review and was 
conservatively based on fiscal year 2016-2017 actuals.  The budget is now $1,150,000 which is a 4% increase 
over the final 2016-2017 actuals.  It appears we are on track for reaching and perhaps exceeding forecasted 
budget revenues for the 2017-2018 fiscal year.  Staff will continue to closely monitor sales and use tax revenues 
and provide current year projections when available.  This data will be utilized as we project revenues in our 2-
year budget process which is currently underway. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Graph – City of Colfax - Retail Sales Tax Revenues
2. Chart – City of Colfax – Retail Sales Tax History





3 of 3



FOR THE AUGUST 8, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

DATE: July 24, 2018 
SUBJECT: Conflict of Interest Code Update – 2018 

X N/A FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file the City of Colfax Local Agency Biennial Notice and adopt 
Resolution 52-2018 amending the City of Colfax Conflict of Interest Code. 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY: 
The Political Reform Act of 1974 was enacted to prevent public officials from using their official positions to 
influence governmental decisions in which they have a financial interest.  The Political Reform Act requires 
every government agency to adopt a Conflict of Interest Code (the Code) and to review the code biennially 
on even numbered years.  The City of Colfax Conflict of Interest Code was adopted in 2002 by Resolution 
44-2002 as required by the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Government Code §87100 et seq.).  The Code was
last reviewed in September, 2016.  Staff has conducted a biennial review to ensure the agency’s code
includes disclosure by those agency officials who make or participate in making governmental decisions.
Staff has determined that an amendment is required to remove a position which was eliminated since the
last biennial review.  The Technical Services Manager (TSM) position is no longer part of the organizational
structure.  Also, those positions filled by consultants are now designated in the Code.

The attached Conflict of Interest Code includes the suggested updates and meets all of the qualifications of 
the Fair Political Practice Commission which administers the Political Reform Act. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 52-2018
2. Conflict of Interest Code – with proposed updates
3. 2018 Local Agency Biennial Notice



City of Colfax 1 Resolution 52-2018 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 52-2018 
 

AMENDING THE CITY OF COLFAX CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax has duly adopted a Conflict of Interest Code as 

required by law on July 23, 2002, namely through Resolution 44-2002; and 
 
WHEREAS, California Government Code §87306.5 requires that in each even-

numbered year cities review their adopted Conflict of Interest Code and submit an 
amended Conflict of Interest Code in accordance with California Government Code 
§§87302(a) and 87303 if necessitated by changed circumstances; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the Colfax Conflict of Interest Code to amend 

the list of individuals required to disclose economic interests and to review the disclosure 
categories to incorporate the model disclosure categories prepared by the State of 
California Fair Political Practices Commission. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax as 

follows: 
1.  The amendments to the Conflict of Interest Code of the City of Colfax attached 

to this Resolution are hereby approved. 
 
2.  The remainder of the City of Colfax Conflict of Interest Code shall be and 

remain in full force and effect subject to said amendments.  For purposes of convenience, 
the following paragraphs 3 through 6, inclusive, repeat the same provisions of Resolution 
44-2002 pursuant to which the City’s Conflict of Interest Code was adopted on July 23, 
2002.  

 
3. The terms of the Model Conflict of Interest Code prepared by the California 

Fair Political Practices Commission and set forth at Title 2, California Code of Regulations, 
Section 18730 and any amendments to that section which may be duly adopted by the Fair 
Political Practices Commission (hereafter “Section 18730”) is hereby adopted by reference 
as the Conflict of Interest Code of the City of Colfax. 

 
4. The list of designated employees contained in Appendix “A” to this 

Resolution and the list of disclosure categories contained in Appendix “B” to this Resolution 
are hereby adopted as the relevant Appendices referred to in subdivisions (b)(2) and (3) of 
section 18730. 

 

2 of 7





City of Colfax 
Conflict of Interest Code 

 
 
The Political Reform Act of 1974 (Government Code Section 81000 et seq.) requires state and 
local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes. 
 
The Fair Political Practices Commission ("FPPC") had adopted a regulation (2 Cal. Code of Regs. 
18730) which contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code which may be 
incorporated by reference in an agency's code, and which may be amended by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act, following public 
notice and hearings. 
 
Therefore, the terms of 2 Cal. Code of Regs. 18730 and any amendments to it duly adopted by the 
FPPC are hereby incorporated by reference. This Resolution and the attached Appendixes 
designating officials and employees and establishing disclosure categories shall constitute the 
Conflict of Interest code for the City of Colfax. 
 
Designated employees shall file statements of economic interests with the City of Colfax. The City 
of Colfax shall make all statements available for public inspection and reproduction, pursuant to 
Government Code section 81008. 
  

4 of 7



CITY OF COLFAX 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

APPENDIX “A” 
 

LIST OF DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES 
 

The following is a listing of those persons who are required to submit Statements of Economic 
Interests pursuant to the Political Reform Act of 1974, as amended, excluding those persons who 
are already required to file the Form 700 pursuant to Government Code §87200. Designated 
employees shall file statements of economic interests with the City Clerk. 
 

1.  Members of Boards and Commissions who are required to file Form 700: 
Citizen Boards/Commissions Disclosure Category 
Economic Development Commission Category 1 
Design Review Commission Category 1 
Ad-Hoc Finance Committee Category 1 
Parks & Recreation Commission Category 1 
All other Boards & Commissions Category 1 
 

2. Persons occupying any of the following designated positions are required to file 
 Form 700: 
Department Position Disclosure Category 
Administrative City Manager Category 1 
 City Clerk Category 1 
Finance Finance Director (Consultant) Category 1 
Planning Planning Director (Consultant) Category 1 
Public Works City Engineer (Consultant) Category 1 
 Community Services Director  Category 1 
Building Building Inspector (Consultant) Category 1 
Consultants See Notes  
Notes:  Consultants.  2 Cal.Code Regs. §18701(a)(2) defines “ consultant” as an individual who 
pursuant to a contract with a state or local government agency: 

A. Makes a government decision whether to:  
i. Approve a rate, rule or regulation; 

ii. Adopt or enforce a law; 
iii. Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, license, application, certificate, approval, 

order, or similar authorization or entitlement; 
iv. Authorize the agency to enter into, modify, or renew a contract provided it is the type 

of contract that requires agency approval; 
v. Grant agency approval to a contract that requires approval and to which the agency is 

a party, or to the specifications for such a contract; 
vi. Grant agency approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar item;  

vii. Adopt, or grant agency approval of, policies, standards, or guidelines for the agency, or 
for any subdivision thereof; or 
 

B. Serves in a staff capacity with the agency and in that capacity participates in making a 
governmental decision as defined in regulation 18702.2 or performs the same or 
substantially all the same duties for the agency that would otherwise be performed by an 
individual holding a position specified in the agency's Conflict of Interest Code. 

 

The disclosure required of consultants shall be determined on a case by case basis by the City 
Manager in consultation with the City Attorney.  The City Manager may make a determination as to 
what disclosure, if any, is required by any particular consultant.  The	City	Manager’s	determination	is	a	
public record and shall be retained for public inspection in the same manner and location as this Conflict 

of Interest Code.  

5 of 7



 

EXHIBIT B 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 

 
 

1. Full Disclosure.  All interests in real property in the City of Colfax, as well as 
investments, business positions and sources of income, including gifts, loans and 
travel payments. 

 
2. Full Disclosure Excluding Interests In Real Property.  All investments, business 

positions and sources of income, including gifts, loans and travel payments. 
 

3. Interests in Real Property.  All interests in real property in the City of Colfax. 
 

4. Contracting.  All investments, business positions and income, including gifts, loans 
and travel payments, from sources that provide leased facilities, goods, equipment, 
vehicles, machinery or services, including training or consulting services, of the type 
used by the City of Colfax. 

 
5. Regulatory, Permit or Licensing.  All investments, business positions and income, 

including gifts, loans and travel payments, from sources that are subject to the 
regulatory, permit or licensing authority of, or have an application for a license or 
permit pending before the City of Colfax. 

 

6 of 7



www.fppc.ca.gov 
FPPC Advice: advice@fppc.ca.gov (866.275.3772) 

Page 1 of 1 
 

2018 Local Agency Biennial Notice 
 
 
Name of Agency:                   
 
Mailing Address:   
 
Contact Person: Phone No.   
 
Email: Alternate Email:  
 
Accurate disclosure is essential to monitor whether officials have conflicts of interest and to 
help ensure public trust in government. The biennial review examines current programs to 
ensure that the agency’s code includes disclosure by those agency officials who make or 
participate in making governmental decisions.  

This agency has reviewed its conflict of interest code and has determined that (check one BOX): 

 An amendment is required.  The following amendments are necessary: 

 (Check all that apply.) 

 Include new positions 
 Revise disclosure categories 
 Revise the titles of existing positions 
 Delete titles of positions that have been abolished and/or positions that no longer make or 

participate in making governmental decisions 
 Other (describe) 

  The code is currently under review by the code reviewing body. 

 No amendment is required.  (If your code is over five years old, amendments may be 
necessary.) 

 

 

Verification (to be completed if no amendment is required) 

 
This agency’s code accurately designates all positions that make or participate in the making of governmental 
decisions. The disclosure assigned to those positions accurately requires that all investments, business 
positions, interests in real property, and sources of income that may foreseeably be affected materially by the 
decisions made by those holding designated positions are reported. The code includes all other provisions 
required by Government Code Section 87302. 

 
__________________________________________ _________________________ 

 Signature of Chief Executive Officer Date 
 
All agencies must complete and return this notice regardless of how recently your code was approved or 
amended. Please return this notice no later than October 1, 2018, or by the date specified by your agency, if 
earlier, to: 

 
(PLACE RETURN ADDRESS OF CODE REVIEWING BODY HERE) 

 
 

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN THIS FORM TO THE FPPC. 

7 of 7

http://www.fppc.ca.gov/
mailto:advice@fppc.ca.gov


1 

FOR THE AUGUST 8, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Dane Schilling, City Engineer; Paul Anderson, Associate Engineer 
DATE: August 1, 2018 

SUBJECT: S. Auburn St. and I-80 Roundabout Project Update and Omni-Means Contract
Amendent. 

N/A  X FUNDED UN-FUNDED 
AMOUNT: $444,234 less 
$19,719 (reimbursable) 

FROM FUND:  385 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 53-2018 authorizing the 

City Manager to execute Amendment № 2 to the Consultant Services Agreement between the 

City of Colfax and Omni-Means, a GHD Company, authorizing the City Manager to execute 
future amendments with costs not to exceed the Design Budget for the S. Auburn St. and I-80 
Roundabout Project, and acknowledging new ownership of the design engineering firm. 

BACKROUND AND DISCUSSION: 

On November 9, 2017, the City Council authorized the City Manager to enter into an agreement 
with Omni-Means, a GHD Company, for design of the S. Auburn St. & I-80 Roundabout Project 
(“Project”).  The scope of services, in the amount of $326,034, included preliminary design, 
environmental review, final design (plans, specifications and estimates), right-of-way services, 
utility coordination services, coordination with Caltrans, and bid support services. 

On April 11, 2018, the City Council was updated as to the status of the project and authorized the 
City Manager to execute Amendment No.1 with Omni-Means in the amount of $18,200 to perform 
two additional environmental studies and design the relocation of a PCWA watermain which will be 
reimbursed by PCWA. Since that time, the City’s design team has received additional comments 
from various departments at Caltrans and from PCWA. Several of the comments will require a 
substantial amount of extra work that could not be anticipated. The comments with the biggest 
impacts are concerning the existing safety deficiencies of the I-80 on/off- ramps and the freeway 
lanes, and a more detailed look at potential lead contamination and archaeological resources 
within the project area. The specifics are contained in the attached scope of work (Exhibit A) and 
the most notable items are summarized as follows: 

¶ Preparation of Design Exception Fact Sheets per Caltrans current template, including
documentation of existing on/off- ramps conditions as requested by Caltrans.  This effort
shall include up to two (2) additional meetings with District 3 Design Staff and two revisions
of the Design Exceptions (includes both Mandatory and Advisory).  Documentation of up to
12 Design Exceptions is included as part of this effort to obtain concurrence/approval of the
project from Caltrans.

ITEM  7A
1 of 14



2 

 

¶ Preparation of a supplemental design memorandum including design basis for roundabout, 
including existing conditions write-up and fastpath 2D/3D, stopping sight distance, 
intersection stopping sight distance, and view angle exhibits as requested by Caltrans.  This 
scope assumes one version of this memorandum shall be submitted. 
 

¶ Re-design of the on/off- ramps to remove splitter islands and truck blisters wherever 
possible and updates to the truck turns to show vehicles taking both lanes as requested by 
Caltrans.  This does not include any major changes to the developer right-turn pocket as the 
splitter island is required for safe pedestrian movements and aids in defining the intersection 
on the downgrade of S. Auburn Street.  These design updates would be discussed in a 
meeting with Caltrans Design for approval/acceptance.  Once approval of concept update 
has been obtained, the design changes would be integrated into the 100% submittal 
package effecting over 40 of the existing plan sheets. 
 

¶ Inclusion/Formatting of Revised Standard Plans relevant to the project for preparation of the 
Encroachment Permit Package. 
 

¶ Extended Phase I (XPI) Report is an extension of the identification phase meeting statute 
requirements, “to identify historic properties within the area of potential effects.”  The 
primary goal of the XPI report is to define part or all of the boundaries (horizontal or vertical) 
of an archaeological site. 
 

¶ Preliminary Site Investigation (PSI) Report is a requirement of all projects to identify 
appropriate material handling, material disposal, or work health and safety.  The PSI reports 
goal is to reduce risk to construction workers and residents; and minimize impacts to costs, 
scope, and schedule.  The PSI report also addresses how the project will comply with 
OSHA, Title 8 and Title 22, Hazardous Waste. 
 

¶ Provide a legal description for a temporary construction easement (TCE) as requested by 
McDonalds. Without the TCE, the City cannot proceed with finalizing authorization for 
improvements on McDonald’s property. 

 

In addition to expanding the scope for design services for the project, Omni-Means would like to 
acknowledge their recent change in ownership in the professional services agreement with the 
City. The attached resolution would revise the name of the engineering firm (“Contractor”) in the 
agreement from “Omni-Means, Ltd., a GHD company” to “GHD Inc.” 

FISCAL IMPACT:   
 

The proposed amendment to the agreement with Omni-Means/GHD is in an amount not to exceed 
$100,000, increasing their total not to exceed amount to $444,234.  It should be noted that $19,719 
of the amendment is for the design services for relocating PCWA facilities and will be reimbursed 
by PCWA upon completion of the project. In order to keep the project design moving as quickly as 
possible, the resolution also includes a provision to allow the City Manager to authorize any other 
amendments with Omni-Means/GHD up to the current budget amount of $472,294 within the 6% 
contingency.

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 53-2018 

2. Contract Amendment  

3. Exhibit A (Scope of Work) 

ITEM  7A
2 of 14









EXHIBIT A
Amendment No. 2

July 31, 2018

Dane Schilling
City of Colfax, City Engineer

RE: Supplemental Scope of Services – South Auburn Street and Interstate 80
Roundabout Project

Dear Dane:

Since entering into the Agreement for Contract Services with the City of Colfax for Engineering
Design Services for the South Auburn Street and Interstate 80 Roundabout Project, after
extensive coordination with Caltrans and PCWA unforeseen project and processing
complications have arisen, and additional services have been identified. These additional
services include:

Task 4 – Environmental Services
 Preliminary Site Investigation Study (Additional Fee: $15,000*)
 Cultural Resources Extended Phase I Proposal (Additional Fee: $8,000*)
 Task 4 Total Additional Fee: $23,000

*Note includes GHD oversight/review and coordination for submittal with Caltrans

Task 5 – Right of Way Support Services
 Plats and Legal Descriptions for McDonalds Property (Additional Fee: $1,000*)
 Task 5 Total Additional Fee: $1,000

*Note includes GHD oversight/review

Task 7 – Design Phase & Preparation of Bid Documents
 PCWA Waterline Re-design (Additional Fee: $10,000)
 Design Exception Fact Sheets (Additional Fee: $20,000)
 Supplemental Design Memorandum (Additional Fee: $6,000)
 Roundabout/On and Off-Ramp Re-design (Additional Fee: $35,000)
 Revised Standard Plans for Bid Document Preparation (Additional Fee: $5,000)
 Task 7 Total Additional Fee: $76,000

Total Additional Fee for all Tasks: $100,000

Sincerely,

GHD Inc.

Kamesh Vedula FOR Doug Ries
Principal in Charge

M2433SCP003.docx/2433/HAA

ITEM  7A
6 of 14



Task 7 – Design Phase & Preparation of Bid Documents

The following will be added to this task:

Re-design/ check of Plan and Profile sheet for the relocation of the PCWA waterline and
additional detailing for waterline tie-ins, specifications for waterline appurtenances, and
coordination meetings with PCWA for their approval of the design.

Additional Fee: $10,000

Preparation of Design Exception Fact Sheets per District 3’s current template, including
documentation of existing on/off-ramp conditions as requested by Caltrans. This effort shall
include up to two additional meetings with District 3 Design Staff and two revisions of the
Design Exceptions (includes both Mandatory and Advisory). Documentation of up to 12 Design
Exceptions is included as part of this effort in order to obtain concurrence/approval on the
project from District 3.

Additional Fee: $20,000

Preparation of a supplemental design memorandum including design basis for roundabout,
including existing conditions write-up and fastpath 2D/3D, stopping sight distance, intersection
stopping sight distance, and view angle exhibits as requested by Caltrans. This scope assumes
only one version of this memorandum shall be submitted.

Additional Fee: $6,000

Re-design of the on/off ramp to remove splitter islands and truck blisters wherever possible and
updates to the truck turns to show vehicles taking both lanes as requested by Caltrans. This
does not include any major changes to the developer right-turn pocket as the splitter island is
required for safe pedestrian movements and aids in defining the intersection on the downgrade
of S Auburn Street.

These design updates would be discussed in a meeting with Caltrans Design for approval/
acceptance. Once approval of concept update has been obtained, the design changes would
be integrated into the 100% submittal package effecting over 40 plan sheets.

Additional Fee: $35,000

Inclusion/ formatting of Revised Standard Plans relevant to the project for preparation of the
Encroachment Permit Package.

Additional Fee: $5,000

Total Proposed Additional Fee:  $76,000

ITEM  7A
7 of 14



 

1243 Alpine Road, Suite 108 
Walnut Creek, CA 94596 

Phone:  925.941.0017 
Fax:  925.941.0018 
www.wreco.com 

 
 

 

                              | Civil Engineering | Environmental Compliance | Geotechnical Engineering | Water Resources |            1 

For Engineering Design, Environmental, and Right‐of‐Way Services  
City of Colfax 
South Auburn Street and Interstate 80 Roundabout Project  
 
June 18, 2018 
Prepared by WRECO 

WRECO General Scope of Work 

 
Task 1  Project Management and Meetings 

 Deliverables:  
o Monthly Invoices and Progress Reports 

 
Task 2  Preliminary  Site  Investigation  (Aerially  Deposited  Lead  and  Naturally  Occurring  Asbestos 
Surveys) 

Statewide 
Agreement  for Caltrans For Reuse of Aerially Deposited Lead‐Contaminated Soils

ITEM  7A
8 of 14





WRECO
 1243 Alpine Road, Suite 108

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

S Auburn Street and I‐80 Roundabout
City of Colfax

Work‐Hour and Fee Estimate for WRECO Tasks

Prepared by WRECO

Work‐Hours

Senior Associate 

Principal  Geotechnical  Senior Staff Senior Env.  Env.  Staff Env.  Associate Clerical/

Task Task Description Engineer Engineer Engineer Engineer Scientist Scientist Scientist Geologist Tech Editor

Task 1: Project Management and Meetings

Monthly Invoices and Progress Reports 2 2

Task 2: Preliminary Site Investigation

Field Work ‐ ADL & NOA 1 4 2 5 5

Draft PSI Study 1 3 36 3 2

Final PSI Study 1 2 2 2 1

Subtotal 0 1 2 4 9 45 5 5 3

Fee

Direct Cost

Hours Hourly Rate Fee

Senior Geotechnical Engineer 1 186.11$       186.11$          

Senior Engineer 2 155.28$       310.56$          

Staff Engineer 4 84.21$         336.84$          

Senior Env. Scientist 9 157.91$       1,421.19$       

Associate Env. Scientist 45 110.54$       4,974.30$       

Staff Env. Scientist 5 84.21$         421.05$          

Associate Geologist 5 110.54$       552.70$          

Clerical/Tech Editor 3 78.95$         236.85$          

Subtotal Direct Labor 74 8,439.60$       

Expenses

Travel & Per Diem (2 trips) 200.00$          

Driller 2,500.00$       

Caltrans Encroachment Permit 200.00$          

Traffic Control (if needed) 1,000.00$       

Laboratory 1,600.00$       

Office Misc. & Reproductions 50.00$            

Subtotal 5,550.00$       

Total Cost 13,989.60$  

CONFIDENTIAL 2018 0618 PSI Fee_revMM

ITEM  7A



Peak & Associates (Job #18-016) 
Colfax Roundabout XPI July 26, 2018 

Colfax Roundabout: Cultural Resources 

Task 1: Extended Phase I Proposal 

We will need to complete an Extended Phase I (XPI) Proposal following the Format and Content 
Guide provided by Caltrans as Exhibit 5.2 in Volume 2 of the Standard Environmental Reference 
Handbook for the testing of the site.  We also need confirmation from Caltrans that the historic 
period features are exempt. 

This document must be approved by Caltrans before initiation of the subsurface testing. The 
following are the costs of preparing the technical proposal. 

Principal Investigator @ $130/hour 
Liaison 2.0 
Document preparation  6.0 

8.0 $1,040.00 
Senior Archeologist @ $120/hour 

Document preparation  6.0     720.00 

Task 1 Total Estimated Cost  $1,760.00 

Task 2: Extended Phase I Testing 

The goal of Peak & Associates is to perform the study for the City of Colfax in a cost-effective 
manner by focusing on obtaining the minimum data necessary given our unique understanding of 
PA-18-25.  We assume that the City will be responsible for the preliminary arrangement 
including access and the 8-1-1 utilities clearance. 

We propose completing a series of shovel test pits to determine whether a subsurface deposit is 
present through the excavation and screening of the sediments from a series of test holes (shovel 
test pits, or STPs) within the APE. 

Peak & Associates, Inc. proposes to excavate a series of ten-twelve STPs in ten-centimeter 
increments, screening the sediment through one-eighth inch shaker screen, and recording the 
findings that will be incorporated into the XPI report.  

We will need to include a Native American monitor, hopefully from the 
, for the excavation. 

ITEM  7A



Peak & Associates  (Job #18-016) 
Colfax Roundabout XPI July 26, 2018 
 

Labor 
 
Principal Investigator @ $130/hour 
 Report   16.0  2,080.00 
 
Senior Archeologist @ $120/hour 
 Field/travel             11.0 
 Graphics    5.0 
 Report      4.0 
    20.0  2,400.00 
 
Archeological Technician @ $80/hour 
 Field/travel             10.0     800.00 
 
Native American @ $40/hour 
 Field/travel  8.0     320.00 
 
Total Labor       $5,600.00 
 
Expenses 

Mileage 
 260 @ $0.55    143.00 
 

Total Expenses       143.00 
 
Task 2 Total Estimated Cost   $5,743.00 
 

 
 
 
Task 1     $1,760.00 
  
Task 2       5,743.00 
 
     $7,503.00 

 

ITEM  7A
12 of 14











ITEM  7B
3 of 11



ITEM  7B
4 of 11



ITEM  7B
5 of 11







ITEM  7B
8 of 11



ITEM  7B
9 of 11





ITEM  7B
11 of 11


	00A 180808 Agenda
	04A 180627 Minutes
	04B 180711 Minutes
	04C Cash Summary June 2018
	2018-12 Staff Report Cash Summary Jun 2018
	Cash Summary Data June 2018

	04D Quarterly Investment Report Ending June 30 2018
	Quarterly Investment Report QE 06.30.18
	Quartely Investment Data June 30 2018

	04E Sales and Use Taxes
	2018-07-24 Staff Report - Sales Tax Analysis FY18 -Q3
	Sales Tax Data June 30 2018

	04F Conflict of Interest Code
	180808 SR Conflict of Interest biennial update
	Resolution 52-2018 Conflict of Interest Code
	Proposed Conflict of Interest Code
	2018 Local Agency Biennial Notice

	07A Roundabout 2nd Amendment Omni
	180808 SR - Omni Mean or GHD Amendment No 2
	Resolution 53-2018 Omni Amendment 2
	Contract Amendment No 2 Omni

	07B Cannabis Permit Update
	Commercial Cannabis Retail Permit Application Progress Staff Report 8.8.2018
	Resolution 12-2018 Cannabis Regulations


	Name of Agency: City of Colfax
	Mailing Address: PO Box 702  Colfax, CA  95713
	Contact Person: Lorraine Cassidy
	Phone No: 530-346-2313
	Email: city.clerk@colfax-ca.gov 
	Alternate Email: 
	An amendment is required: On
	Include new positions: Off
	Revise disclosure categories: Off
	Revise the titles of existing positions: On
	Delete titles of positions: On
	Other: Off
	Describe: 
	The code is currently under review: Off
	No amendment is required: Off
	Date: 


